
 

 

 

 

 
PWYLLGOR CYNLLUNIO 

 
10.00 AM - DYDD MAWRTH, 9 AWST 2022 

 
CYFARFOD AML-LEOLIAD - SIAMBR Y CYNGOR PORT, TALBOT A 

MICROSOFT TEAMS 
 

 
RHAID GOSOD POB FFÔN SYMUDOL AR Y MODD DISTAW AR 

GYFER PARHAD Y CYFARFOD 
 

Gweddarlledu/Cyfarfodydd Hybrid: 
Gellir ffilmio’r cyfarfod hwn i’w ddarlledu’n fyw neu’n ddiweddarach drwy 

wefan y cyngor. Drwy gymryd rhan, rydych yn cytuno i gael eich ffilmio ac 
i’r delweddau a’r recordiadau sain hynny gael eu defnyddio at ddibenion 

gweddarlledu a/neu hyfforddiant o bosib. 
 
 Rhan 1 

 
1.  Croeso a galw’r rhestr   

 
2.  Datganiadau o fuddiannau   
 
3.  Cofnodion y cyfarfod blaenorol  (Tudalennau 5 - 8) 

 29 Mawrth 2022 

 19 Gorffennaf 2022 
 

4.  Gwneud cais am ymweliad(au) safle gan y ceisiadau a gyflwynwyd   
 

 Adroddiad/au gan Bennaeth Cynllunio a Diogelu'r Cyhoedd 
 

 Adran A - Materion i'w Penderfynu 
 

 Ceisiadau Cynllunio wedi'u hargymell ar gyfer Cymeradwyaeth 
 
5.  Cais Rhif P2021/0856 - Eagle House  (Tudalennau 9 - 36) 

AGENDA 



Dymchwel yr adeilad swyddfeydd 2 lawr presennol ac adeiladu 18 o 
fflatiau tai fforddiadwy ar y lloriau uwch gydag unedau 
swyddfa/masnach ar y llawr gwaelod a gwaith allanol cysylltiedig ac 
ardal barcio.  
 
Yn Eagle House, 2 Heol Talbot, Port Talbot SA13 1DH 
 

 Adran B - Materion Er Gwybodaeth 
 

6.  Penderfyniadau Dirprwyedig - 11 Gorffennaf 2022 ac 1 Awst 2022  
(Tudalennau 37 - 50) 

 
7.  Eitemau brys   

Unrhyw eitemau brys yn ol disgresiwn y Cadeirydd yn unol ag 
Adran 100B (4) (b) o Ddeddf 
Llywodraeth Leol 1972. 
 

 
K.Jones 

Prif Weithredwr 
 

Canolfan Ddinesig 
Port Talbot Dydd Mercher, 3 Awst 2022 
 
 



 
 
Aelodaeth Pwyllgor:  
 
Cadeirydd: Y Cynghorydd C.James 

 
Is-Gadeirydd: 
 

Y Cynghorydd J.Jones 
 

Aelodau: 
 

Y Cynghorydd S.Paddison, D.Keogh, R.Davies, 
T.Bowen, H.Davies, C.James, L.Jones, 
C.Jordan, C.Phillips a/ac S.Thomas  
 

Aelod Cabinet: Councillor W.F.Griffiths 
 
Gwneud cais i siarad yng nghyfarfod y Pwyllgor Cynllunio 
 
Mae gan y cyhoedd hawl i fynd i'r cyfarfod ac annerch y pwyllgor yn unol â 
gweithdrefn gytunedig y cyngor sydd ar gael yn www.npt.gov.uk/planning.   
 
Os hoffech siarad yn y Pwyllgor Cynllunio ynghylch cais yr adroddwyd 
amdano i'r pwyllgor hwn, mae'n rhaid i chi: 
 

       Gysylltu â'r Gwasanaethau Democrataidd yn ysgrifenedig, naill ai 
drwy'r post yn: Y Ganolfan Ddinesig, Port Talbot SA13 1PJ, neu'n 
ddelfrydol drwy e-bostio: democratic.services@npt.gov.uk. 

       Sicrhau eich bod yn gwneud eich cais i siarad ddau ddiwrnod gwaith 
cyn dyddiad y cyfarfod fan bellaf (erbyn 2pm ar y dydd Gwener 
blaenorol os yw'r cyfarfod ar ddydd Mawrth).  

       Nodi’n glir rif yr eitem neu'r cais rydych am siarad amdani/o a 
chadarnhewch a ydych yn cefnogi'r cais neu’n ei wrthwynebu. 

       Rhoi eich enw a'ch cyfeiriad (a fydd ar gael i'r cyhoedd oni bai fod 
rhesymau penodol dros gyfrinachedd). 

 
Sylwer, dim ond un person sy’n gallu siarad ar ran pob 'categori' ar gyfer 
pob cais h.y. y gwrthwynebydd, y cefnogwr, yr ymgeisydd/asiant, y 
Cyngor Cymuned/Tref. Ceir manylion llawn yng ngweithdrefn gytunedig y 
cyngor. 
 
Yn ogystal, os yw gwrthwynebydd yn dymuno siarad, hysbysir yr 
ymgeisydd/asiant gan y cyngor. 
 
Os ydych yn dymuno trafod unrhyw agwedd ar siarad cyhoeddus, 
ffoniwch dîm y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd ar 01639 763313. 

http://www.npt.gov.uk/planning
mailto:democratic.services@npt.gov.uk


Cyflwyno sylwadau ar geisiadau cynllunio yr adroddir amdanynt i'r 
pwyllgor 

Os ydych yn dymuno cyflwyno sylwadau ar gais a gyflwynir i'r Pwyllgor 
Cynllunio hwn, sylwer bod rhaid i'r Adran Gynllunio dderbyn y rhain erbyn 
2.00pm ar y dydd Gwener cyn cyfarfod y pwyllgor fan bellaf (yn seiliedig 
ar y cyfarfod dydd Mawrth arferol). Os nad yw'r cyfarfod ar ddydd Mawrth, 
dylid eu derbyn erbyn 2.00pm ar y diwrnod gwaith olaf ond un cyn y 
Pwyllgor Cynllunio fan bellaf.  

Caiff sylwadau a dderbynnir yn unol â phrotocol y cyngor eu crynhoi a, lle 
y bo'n briodol, gwneir sylwadau arnynt ar ffurf Taflen Ddiwygio, a 
ddosberthir i aelodau'r Pwyllgor Cynllunio drwy e-bost ar y noson cyn 
cyfarfod y pwyllgor, a'i chyflwyno ar ffurf copi caled yn y cyfarfod. 

 
 
 



PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

(REMOTELY VIA TEAMS) 
 

Members Present:  29 March 2022 
 
 
Chairperson: Councillor S.Paddison 

 
Vice Chairperson: Councillor S.Pursey 

 
Councillors: D.Keogh, R.Mizen, S.K.Hunt, A.N.Woolcock, 

C.Williams, S.Renkes, M.Protheroe and 
C.James 
 

Officers In 
Attendance: 
 

C.Morris, C.Davies, J.Weeks, G.White and 
T.Davies 
 

 

 
1. WELCOME AND ROLL CALL  

 
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and roll call was taken. 
 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
No declarations of interest were received. 
 
 

3. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the previous meeting held 

on 8 March 2022, be approved. 
 
 

4. TO REQUEST SITE VISIT(S) FROM THE APPLICATIONS 
PRESENTED  
 
RESOLVED: That no site visits be held on the application 

before committee today. 
 
 

Tudalen5

Eitem yr Agenda3



 

290322 

5. APPLICATION NO. P2022/1010 - 161 NEATH ROAD, BRITON 
FERRY  
 
It was noted that an incorrect Application number had been quoted on 
the circulated agenda – the correct Planning Application No. should 
have read P2022/0101, and not P2022/1010. 
 
Officers made a presentation to the Planning Committee on this 
Application (change of use from residential dwelling (Use Class C3) 
to children's care home (Use Class C2), including provision of car 
parking to rear at 161 Neath Road, Briton Ferry, Neath, SA11 2BX), 
as detailed in the circulated report. 
 
RESOLVED: That in accordance with Officers’ 

recommendations, Application No. P2022/0101 
be Approved. 
 
 

6. DELEGATED DECISIONS - 28 FEBRUARY TO 21 MARCH 2022  
 
Members noted the list of Delegated Decisions from 28 February to 
21 March 2022. 
 
RESOLVED:  That the report be noted. 
 
 

7. URGENT ITEMS  
 
None were received. 

 
 
 
 
 

CHAIRPERSON 

Tudalen6



PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

(VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS / HYBRID MEETING IN COUNCIL 
CHAMBER) 

 
Members Present:  19 July 2022 
 
 
Chairperson: Councillor C.James 

 
Vice Chairperson: Councillor J.Jones 

 
Councillors: S.Paddison, D.Keogh, R.Davies, T.Bowen, 

C.James, L.Jones, C.Jordan, C.Phillips and 
S.Thomas  
 

UDP/LDP Member: Councillor W.F.Griffiths 
 

Local Members: Councillor R.Mizen (Bryn and Cwmavon) and 
D.Whitelock (Bryn and Cwmavon) 
 

Officers In 
Attendance: 
 

C.Morris, C.Davies, M.Shaw, J.Griffiths, 
K.Powell and T.Davies 

 

 
1. CHAIRPERSONS ANNOUNCEMENTS  

 
The Chair welcomed everyone to the Planning Committee. 
 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
None were received. 
 
 

3. TO REQUEST SITE VISIT(S) FROM THE APPLICATIONS 
PRESENTED  
 
No requests for Site Visit/s were received. 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen7



 

190722 

4. APPLICATION NO. P2022/0122 - WINDSOR LODGE  
 
Officers made a presentation to the Planning Committee on this 
Application (Change of use of dwelling to residential care home for 
adults aged 19-64 (C3 to C2) creating 4 self contained assisted living 
units, demolition of existing conservatory and construction of a single 
storey side extension, an addition dormer window to rear roof slope, 
and garage conversion to staff facilities and construction of a 
replacement flat roof to existing rear extension with an increase in 
height, plus the construction of new entrance steps and ramp with 
associated engineering works and areas of hardstanding, at Windsor 
Lodge, The Avenue, Cwmavon, Port Talbot, SA12 9PL), as detailed 
in the circulated report. 
 
RESOLVED: That in accordance with Officers’ 

recommendations, Application No. P2022/0122 
be Approved. 
 
 

5. APPEALS DETERMINED - 22 DECEMBER 2021 TO 11 JULY 2022  
 
RESOLVED: That the report be noted. 
 
 

6. APPEALS RECEIVED - 11 JANUARY 2022 TO 11 JULY 2022  
 
RESOLVED: That the report be noted. 
 
 

7. DELEGATED DECISIONS - 21 MARCH 2022 TO 11 JULY 2022  
 
RESOLVED: That the report be noted. 
 
 

8. URGENT ITEMS  
 
No Urgent Items were received. 

 
 
 
 

CHAIRPERSON 

Tudalen8



 

SECTION A – MATTERS FOR DECISION 
 
Planning Applications Recommended For Approval  

 

APPLICATION NO: P2021/0856 DATE: 19th August 2021 

PROPOSAL:         The demolition of the existing 2 storey office building and 
the construction of 18 affordable housing apartments on 
upper floors with office/commercial units at ground floor 
and associated external works and parking area. 

LOCATION: Eagle House 2 Talbot Road Port Talbot SA13 1DH 

APPLICANT: I & S Gorvett with Castell Group 

TYPE: Full Plans 

WARD: Port Talbot 

 

BACKGROUND 
 

This application is reported to Planning Committee as Cllrs Freeguard and Rahaman 
have requested that the application be determined via Planning Committee on the 
following grounds: 

 

  The building is of significant local importance and part of the local development plan 
and is listed as an important building by the Council. 

 The plans have now changed due to inaccuracies.  
 There may be loss of historic features with the current plans as they stand. 
 The plan for use of the building as individual flats is not conducive with the 

immediate surroundings and the antisocial issues that this area experiences. 

 

SITE AND CONTEXT 
 

The application site is an irregular parcel of land located on the edge of the Port Talbot 
Town Centre, and is adjacent to the Transport Hub and Port Talbot Parkway Train Station. 
The plot is long and linear in shape with the narrow end fronting onto Talbot Road and 
the longer side fronting onto Oakwood Lane, which runs between the application site and 
the Grand Hotel located to the North West. The Grand Hotel is a predominately three 
storey ridged roof building with a fourth centrally located storey. 

 
To the narrow north eastern boundary of the site is Oakwood Court, a block of residential 
flats, and an electricity sub-station. To the long south eastern boundary is the residential 
development of Eagle Mews. The Eagle Mews development is made up of three blocks. 
The first block (units 1-6) is a three storey block of flats which front onto Talbot Road and 
flanks onto the application site. To the rear of these are two further blocks which are 
accessed off Eagle Mews itself. One of the block is a group of four flats and the final block 
is a group of terraced houses. These properties all face the rear side elevation of the new 
build part of the former Plaza Cinema development and back onto the side boundary of 
the application site. To the opposite side of Talbot Road is the three storey building of 
The Red Lion (Formally The Corner House dated 1928). 

Tudalen9

Eitem yr Agenda5



 

 
 

The main Eagle House building is made up of two sections, which are two storey with 
high ridged gabled roofs. These two section are joined together by a two storey flat roofed 
section of building. Alterations have been made to the building over time, including what 
would appear to be the rendering of the ground floor and addition of large display windows 
to the principal elevation, together with a large modern, two storey glazed front porch 
structure that have been added to the frontage building. A further building is located within 
the application site. This is a single storey, detached building that is located directly on 
the edge of the carriageway of Oakwood Lane. This building was a former public 
convenience and had pedestrian entrances to the front and rear of the building. In recent 
years this building was used for storage but has been disused for a number of years. 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen10



 
DESCRIPTION OF DEVELOPMENT 

The proposed development seeks permission for the demolition of the existing buildings 
on the site and the construction of a five storey mixed use building, with commercial uses 
on the ground floor and originally 20 residential units on the four floors above, which has 
been subsequently reduced down to 18 flats. The proposed flats would be made  up of 
13 – one bed apartments and 5 two bed apartments, with 6 flats on each of the first and 
second floors, 4 flats on the third floor and 2 flats on the fourth floor. 

 
The proposed structure would be located in a similar position to that of the existing main 
building, within the Talbot Road frontage of the site, but would fill most of the available 
frontage area, with the exception of a small triangular area to the front (south eastern 
corner of the site adjacent to Eagle Mews), which is proposed as a vegetated swale and 
biodiversity area (approximately 13sq.m). 

 
An under croft area located on the ground floor and to the rear of the proposed building 
is shown to be used for the provision of two disabled parking spaces, bin storage for the 
commercial development and two separate areas for bin storage and cycle storage for 
the flats. The remainder of the site is shown to be used as car parking and a second larger 
landscaped swale/water garden and biodiversity area (58sq.m) located at the far end of 
the site. 

 
The proposed building is shown to have a rectangular front projection towards Talbot 
Road, with a recessed, but prominent curved feature that addresses the corner of the site 
before the building continues on along the front of Oakwood Lane. The building is to be 
externally finished with a cream/buff brick with three panels of vertical standing seem 
metal cladding set within brick frames. A glazed vertical panel would be located above 
the main entrance to the residential part of the building. 
 
Photomontage (Noting this is now amended to provide set back of upper floors) 
 

 
 
 

 

Tudalen11



 
 
 

The fourth floor of the building has a significantly smaller footprint and is set back from 
the main elevations, with the exception of the main entrance element of the residential 
development, where it is flush with the main structure. An amendment has been made to 
the original proposal to shown a reduction in the footprint of the third and fourth floors at 
both ends of the building. This creates a stepped appearance between the third and fourth 
floors of the building and that of the adjacent development of Eagle Mews. The proposed 
amended roof plan shows a corresponding reduction in roof area due to the stepped 
design, as well as a reduction in the extent of solar panels that are to be accommodated 
on the roof. 

 
During the course of the application it came to light that the applicant was not the owner 
of all the land outlined in red on the location plan. As some of the owners of the land  are 
not known (two small parcels of land within the existing and proposed car parking area 
are unregistered), the applicants have published a copy of the “Notice Under Article 10” 
in the local press and have submitted a completed copy of Certificate C. In addition to this 
the applicants have also submitted an amended location plan excluding the existing 
electricity sub-station from the application site area. A revised consultation exercise was 
carried out on these revisions. 

 

All plans / documents submitted in respect of this application can be viewed on the 
Council’s online register. 

 

NEGOTIATIONS 
 

Pre-application advice was provided prior to the submission of the application. 
Amendments have also been made to the scheme during the course of the application, 

Tudalen12



in relation to the design and massing of the building as well as the in relation to the Flood 
Consequence Assessment and the design and layout of the car parking area as well as 
a reduction in the site area to exclude the existing electricity substation from the proposed 
development. 

 
PLANNING HISTORY 

 

The application site has the following relevant planning history: - 
 

T1974/0207 - 2 mobile units for temporary accommodation - Conditional Approval 
16/09/1974. 

 
 

P1984/4764 - Conversion of store from public convenience. – Conditional Approval 
26/07/1984 
 
P1990/7823 - Residential home for the elderly. Conditional Approval 05/11/1990 

 
P1996/10359 - Pitched roof to replace existing flat roof. Conditional Approval 
10/06/1996. 

 
 
P2012/0285 - Change of use of public convenience to Financial and Professional offices 
(A2), plus insertion of a window and doorway on rear elevation, erection of a bin storage 
area, extension to front boundary wall and new pedestrian gate. – Conditional Approval 
– 11/05/2012 

 
 

CONSULTATIONS 
 

Head of Engineering and Transport (Highways): No objection subject to conditions. 
 

Head of Engineering and Transport (Drainage): SAB consent would be required. 
 

Natural Resources Wales (NRW): Raised concerns in relation to TAN15 and flood  risk 
in regards to the proposed car parking area and its resurfacing and recommended 
conditions to address other issues. 

 
Noise: No objection subject to conditions. 

 
Air Quality: No objection subject to conditions. 
 

Environmental Health (Housing): No comment to make. 
 

Contaminated Land: No objection subject to standard conditions. 
 

Biodiversity: Raised concerns that the bat and bird boxes are not shown on the 
submitted drawings as indicted. 

 
Education: No comment received, therefore no observations to make. 

 

Tudalen13



Housing: Have confirmed that the development is part of the social housing grant 
scheme to address a need for this type of accommodation in this locality. 

 
Leisure: A contribution of £31,920 towards open space provision was identified as 
being required. 

 
Play: No comment received, therefore no observations to make. 

 
Glamorgan Gwent Archaeological Trust: No objection subject to a condition. 

Crime Prevention: Raised comments in relation to the details of the development. 

Dwr Cymru Welsh Water: No objection subject to conditions. 

 
REPRESENTATIONS 

 

The neighbouring properties were consulted on 19 August 2021, 15 November 2021, 3 
February 2022 and the 6 July 2022. 

 
A site notice was also displayed on 23 August 2021, 15 November 2022, 3 February 
2022 and the 6 July 2022. 

 
The application was also advertised in the press on 2 September 2021 and 13 July 
2022. 

 
In response, to date 1no. representation has been received on behalf of 4 residents of 
separate addresses within Eagle Mews, with the issues raised summarised as follows: - 

 

 The proposed development would eliminate what privacy they have, especially in 
light of the Plaza Cinema which is located at the other side of their dwellings.

 

 They would also like to object to further building work being in close proximity to 
their home. The Plaza Development has resulted in high and consistent amount of 
noise pollution as well as layers of dust on vehicles and within their homes placing 
them in perpetual turmoil.
 

 They also object to the further reduction of light offered to their homes due to 
potential construction of a four storey building. Again a vast amount of light has 
already been cut off by the Plaza development, for this to be repeated on the 
opposite side of their homes will result in them living in a dusty shadow with little 
privacy. The proposal would overlook their patios and small gardens and also cast 
shadow for a large part of the day.





REPORT 
 
The Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015 places a duty on the Council to take 
reasonable steps in exercising its functions to meet its sustainable development (or 
wellbeing) objectives. This report has been prepared in consideration of the Council’s duty 
and the “sustainable development principle”, as set out in the 2015 Act. In reaching the 

Tudalen14



recommendation set out below, the Council has sought to ensure that the needs of the 
present are met without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own 
needs. 
 
National Planning Policy: 
 
Future Wales: The National Plan 2040 is the national development framework, setting the 
direction for development in Wales to 2040. The development plan sets out a strategy for 
addressing key national priorities through the planning system, including sustaining and 
developing a vibrant economy, achieving decarbonisation and climate resilience, 
developing strong ecosystems and improving the health and wellbeing of our communities. 
 
The following policies are of particular relevance to the assessment of this application: 
 
Policy 2 – Shaping Urban Growth and Regeneration – Strategic Placemaking  
 
The growth and regeneration of towns and cities should positively contribute towards 
building sustainable places that support active and healthy lives, with urban 
neighbourhoods that are compact and walkable, organised around mixed-use centres and 
public transport, and integrated with green infrastructure. Urban growth and regeneration 
should be based on the following strategic placemaking principles:  

 creating a rich mix of uses;  

 providing a variety of housing types and tenures;  

 building places at a walkable scale, with homes, local facilities and public transport 
within walking distance of each other;  

 increasing population density, with development built at urban densities that can 
support public transport and local facilities;  

 establishing a permeable network of streets, with a hierarchy that informs the nature 
of development;  

 promoting a plot-based approach to development, which provides opportunities for 
the development of small plots, including for custom and self-builders; and  

 integrating green infrastructure, informed by the planning authority’s Green 
Infrastructure Assessment.  

 
Planning authorities should use development plans to establish a vision for each town and 
city. This should be supported by a spatial framework that guides growth and regeneration, 
and establishes a structure within which towns and cities can grow, evolve, diversify and 
flourish over time. 
 
Policy 7 – Delivering Affordable Homes  
 
The Welsh Government will increase delivery of affordable homes by ensuring that funding 
for these homes is effectively allocated and utilised. Through their Strategic and Local 
Development Plans planning authorities should develop strong evidence based policy 
frameworks to deliver affordable housing, including setting development plan targets based 
on regional estimates of housing need and local assessments. In response to local and 
regional needs, planning authorities should identify sites for affordable housing led 
developments and explore all opportunities to increase the supply of affordable housing. 
 
 

Tudalen15

mailto:https://gov.wales/future-wales-national-plan-2040


Policy 8 – Flooding  
 
Flood risk management that enables and supports sustainable strategic growth and 
regeneration in National and Regional Growth Areas will be supported. The Welsh 
Government will work with Flood Risk Management Authorities and developers to plan and 
invest in new and improved infrastructure, promoting nature-based solutions as a priority. 
Opportunities for multiple social, economic and environmental benefits must be maximised 
when investing in flood risk management infrastructure. It must be ensured that projects do 
not have adverse impacts on international and national statutory designated sites for nature 
conservation and the features for which they have been designated. 
 
 
 
 

Planning Policy Wales (Edition 11, February 2021) outlines the Welsh Government's 
commitment to the importance of 'places' and 'place-making', the importance of using 
previously developed land wherever possible in preference to greenfield sites, and the 
recognition of the health and wellbeing related benefits by creating a sense of place and 
improving social cohesion. PPW 11 confirms that the environmental components of places 
are intrinsically linked to the quality of the built and natural environment and contribute to 
the health and wellbeing of the people who live, work and play there. It emphasises the 
importance of creating sustainable communities and reducing reliance on the private car as 
part of a package of measures to reduce the country's carbon footprint and help tackle the 
climate emergency. 
 
 
PPW11 is supported by a series of more detailed Technical Advice Notes (TANs), of which 
the following are of relevance:  
 

 TAN 2 Planning and Affordable Housing.

 TAN 4 Retail and Commercial Development.

 TAN 5 Nature Conservation and Planning.

 TAN 11 Noise.

 TAN 12 Design.

 TAN 15 Development and Flood Risk.

 TAN 16 Sport, Recreation and Open Space.

 TAN 18 Transport.
 

Local Planning Policies 
 

The Local Development Plan for the area comprises the Neath Port Talbot Local 
Development Plan which was adopted in January 2016, and within which the following 
policies are of relevance: 
 
Strategic Policies : 
 

 Policy SP1 Climate Change

 Policy SP3 Sustainable communities

 Policy SP7 Housing Requirement

 Policy SP8 Affordable Housing

Tudalen16

mailto:https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2021-02/planning-policy-wales-edition-11_0.pdf
https://gov.wales/technical-advice-notes
https://www.npt.gov.uk/7328
https://www.npt.gov.uk/7328
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE%3D35
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE%3D37
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE%3D56


 Policy SP10 Open Space

 Policy SP12 Retail

 Policy SP15 Biodiversity and Geodiversity

 Policy SP16 Environmental Protection

 Policy SP18 Renewable and Low Carbon Energy

 Policy SP19 Waste Management

 Policy SP20 Transport Network

 Policy SP21 Built Environment and Historic Heritage



Topic Based Policies : 
 

 Policy SC1 Settlement limits

 Policy AH1 Affordable Housing
 Policy OS1 Open Space Provision

 Policy R3 Out of Centre Retail Proposals
 Policy TO4 Walking and Cycling Routes
 Policy EN7 Important Natural Features
 Policy EN8 Pollution and Land Stability

 Policy EN9 Developments in the Central Port Talbot Area
 Policy RE2 Renewable and Low Carbon Energy in New Development
 Policy TR2 Design and Access of New Development
 Policy BE1 Design

 Policy BE2 Buildings of Local Importance





Supplementary Planning Guidance: 
 

The following SPG is of relevance to this application: - 
 

 Planning Obligations (October 2016)

 Parking Standards (October 2016)

 Affordable Housing (October 2016)
 Pollution (October 2016)

 Open Space & Greenspace (July 2017)

 Renewable and Low Carbon Energy (July 2017)

 Design (July 2017)
 Biodiversity and Geodiversity (May 2018)

 The Historic Environment (April 2019) (incl. Schedule of Buildings of Local 
Importance and SPG: Schedule of Designated Canal Structures)

 

Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) and Appropriate Assessment (AA) Screening. 
 

The application site does not exceed the Schedule 2 threshold for development of this type 
as outlined within the Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations. As such the 
application does not require screening in accordance with the requirements of Schedule 3 
of the Regulations and is not EIA Development. 
 
The proposed development is not located within a zone of influence for any Special Area of 
Conservation (SAC), Candidate Special Area of Conservation (CSAC) or Ramsar sites and 

Tudalen17

https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE%3D59
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE%3D65
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE%3D72
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE%3D74
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE%3D78
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE%3D80
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE%3D83
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE%3D87
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE%3D38
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE%3D57
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE%3D60
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE%3D67
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE%3D69
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE%3D73
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE%3D74
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE%3D75
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE%3D80
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE%3D84
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE%3D87
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE%3D88
https://www.npt.gov.uk/pdf/spg_planning_obligations_oct16.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/spg_parking_standards_oct16.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/pdf/spg_affordable_housing_oct16.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/spg_pollution_oct16.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/7239/spg_open_space_july17.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/7241/spg_renewable_energy_july17.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/7237/spg_design_july17.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/9003/spg_biodiversity_geodiversity_may18.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/11629/spg_historic_environment_april19.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/11630/spg_bli_schedule_april19.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/11630/spg_bli_schedule_april19.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/11630/spg_bli_schedule_april19.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/11633/spg_canal_schedule_april19.pdf


as such it is considered that an Appropriate Assessment as set down within the 
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as Amended) is not required. 
 
Issues 
 

Having regard to the above, the main issues to consider in this application relate to the 
principle of development, together with the impact on the visual amenity of the area, the 
amenities of neighbouring residents, highway safety, flood risk, historic environment and air 
quality. 
 
Principle of Development 
 

The application site is located within the identified settlement where the principle of 
development is considered acceptable, subject to the development complying with the 
requirements of the other development plan policies. 
 
The proposal seeks to demolish the existing Eagle House building, which is identified as 
being a Building of Local Importance within the Supplementary Planning Guidance: The 
Historic Environment’s Schedule of Buildings of Local Importance. Policy BE2 – Buildings 
of Local Importance states that development proposals that would affect buildings that are 
of local historic, architectural or cultural importance will only be permitted where they 
conserve and where appropriate enhance the building and its setting; or it is demonstrated 
that the development could not reasonably be accommodated without affecting or replacing 
the building and the reasons for the development outweigh the heritage importance of the 
site. 
 
In accordance with the second of these requirements the applicants have submitted a 
document of justification for the proposed demolition of the Building of Local Importance. 
The document identifies the need for affordable housing within the Port Talbot area and 
quotes a figure of 2,085 units between 2011 and 2026 which was taken from the Council’s 
Local Development Plan (LDP). They state that it is understood that this figure is unlikely to 
be met over the relevant time period.  

 
They have also identified that some of the allocated housing sites and windfall 
developments would be effected by the New TAN 15: Development and Flood Risk. 
However it should be noted that the roll out of the New TAN15 has now been delayed from 
the 1 Dec 2021 until 1 June 2023. The applicants have also identified that the project is 
supported by the Local Authority Housing Officers and has secured Welsh Government 
Technical Approval and Grant Funding. They have also stated that the application site is 
positioned in a highly sustainable location, close to a major transport hub and local 
amenities. 
 
The submitted justification continues on to address the Policy’s requirement to show that 
the development could not be accommodated without affecting or replacing the existing 
building. The document states that the existing building is a 2 storey, stone structure, which 
was constructed in the late 19th century. The building has a footprint of 279sq.m (gross 
external area) and gross internal area of 245sq.m on each floor.  

 
The building currently provides commercial accommodation over the 2 floors. The  
conversion of the existing building to provide a mix use development was considered as 
part of the initial design process. They state that given the need to retain the ground floor 

Tudalen18



commercial use in accordance with policy EC4, and the need to provide access to the 
available area of first floor residential accommodation would take up approximately 
250sq.m. Assuming a required floor space area of 46-52sq.m for a 1 bedroom apartment, 
the existing building could achieve a maximum number of 5 residential units, but given the 
layout of the existing building this is likely to be reduced down to 3-4 residential units, which 
would not be viable when considered against the cost of the land and construction cost to 
bring the existing building up to modern housing standards. 
 
 
The justification continues on to consider in detail the requirements for Welsh Government 
Design Quality for high quality sustainable apartments. The document  also outlines the 
consideration that was given to the possible conversion of the existing building and 
construction of a new build development within the rear car park area. However they state 
that due to the close proximity of the adjacent dwellings in Eagles Mews (approximately 
4.5m from the eastern boundary with the car park) this option was not considered possible 
without impacting on the amenity of the occupiers of those existing properties 

 

Finally, the justification document outlines the proposed benefits that they believe would 
be associated with the proposed development, including the highly sustainable location; 
the proposed flats would be high quality and designed in accordance with Welsh 
Government Design Quality Requirements (DQR); the proposed apartments would be net 
zero carbon in operation and would benefit from good levels of natural light and will be 
acoustically insulated.  

 
They consider that the external design is high quality, reflecting the significance of the 
location and the materials. It would also be high quality and sustainably sourced, ensuring 
that the building lasts and weathers well. They also believe that the design of the building 
would complement the recent development of the former police station with a palette of 
materials that would not conflict with the Former Plaza Cinema – Listed Building 
redevelopment and refurbishment project.  

 
They have also stated that materials from the existing building would be reused within the 
development to construction a boundary wall around the car park area. Based on the above, 
it is considered that it would not be possible to convert the existing building into a mixed use 
development with commercial use on the ground floor and residential above that would be 
of a comparative criteria, quantity or quality that would meet modern housing quality 
standards, or the needs for accommodation of this type within this locality.  

 
As such, it is considered that the proposed development would accord with the 
requirements of policy BE2 in justifying the loss of the existing Building of Local Importance 
and that the principle of development is acceptable subject to the development complying 
with the requirements of the other development plan policies. 
 
Impact on Visual Amenity 
 

The application site is located in a very prominent location on the edge of the transport hub 
public open space area, opposite the Port Talbot Parkway and the Grand Hotel. This site 
anchors the southern end of the newly formed public space. The proposed building is shown 
to fully fill the frontage of the plot, with a five storey building, which would help to visually 
enclose this part of the open space. The proposed building is shown to have a curved 

Tudalen19



feature incorporated into the very corner of the site facing out towards the public open space 
and the realigned road. The proposed curved feature would serve to terminate the southern 
vista of the public space, while also drawing the eye down along Talbot Road, and around 
to Oakwood Lane. 
 
The original design of the building has been amended to reduce the span of the building on 
the fourth floor, with it now being set in from the lower floors at both ends of the building. 
This creates a stepped appearance between the third, fourth and fifth floors, where it is 
adjacent to the Eagle Mews development, which has a lower height. This stepped design 
helps to create flow and interest within the proposed streetscene, where there would be a 
change in roof line between the separate buildings. 
 
It is noted that on the streetscene drawing it shows the Plaza Cinema building with its 
original hipped roof structure to the rear of the building’s main frontage. The former Plaza 
Cinema is a Grade II Listed Building which is owned by the Council and which has been 
undergoing an extensive refurbishment scheme.  As part of the refurbishment scheme the 
plain hipped roof, rear section of the building was demolished and replaced with a new flat 
roof section of modern design. This is at a lower height than the original front profile of the 
Plaza Cinema which retains the original tiled Art Deco frontage. The impact of the proposed 
development has been considered in relation to this newly refurbished lower structure. It is 
considered that the proposed development with its amended stepped design would be in 
keeping with the resultant new streetscene and would have no adverse impact upon the 
setting of the remaining Art Deco frontage of the Listed Building. 
 
The existing Eagle House is predominately used for office uses (under either use class A2 
Financial and Professional Services and B1 Offices).  The proposed development seeks 
permission for a mixed use commercial (Use Class A2 on the ground floor) and residential 
development located within an established mixed use area. As such, the proposal would be 
in keeping with the character and uses of the immediate and wider area. It is therefore 
considered that the proposed development would be in keeping with the character and 
appearance of the existing streetscene, while not adversely impacting upon the setting of 
the Plaza Listed Building.  A condition is recommended to be imposed that would limit the 
use of the ground floor of the building to uses within class A2 and for no other uses.   
 
Impact on Residential Amenity 
 

Oakwood Court is an existing three storey block of flats that is located to the north east of 
the application site. The existing block of flats is located approximately 5.3m from the rear 
boundary of the application site and approximately 38m from the proposed rear elevation 
of the development. This distance is sufficient to ensure that there would be no overlooking, 
overshadowing or overbearing of these existing dwelling units. 
 
The Grand Hotel is located on the opposite (western) side of Oakwood Lane from the 
application site. The side elevation of the Grand Hotel is irregularly shaped and would be 
located approximately 10.3m at its closest and 13m at it’s furthest from the development’s 
side elevation with the roadway located between. The existing hotel has doors and windows 
on the ground floor that have predominately been blocked up. On the floors above the 
windows are located at angles to the roadway and the majority of the windows appear to 
serve bathrooms. It is therefore considered that due to the orientation and function of the 
windows within the side elevation of the hotel, there would be no adverse impact through 
overshadowing, overbearing or overlooking caused by the proposed development. 

Tudalen20



 
The proposal would be located approximately 17.5m from the closest point of the Red 
Lion/Corner House building, which is located on the southern side of Talbot Road. This 
distance would be comparable to the existing relationship between these building with the 
busy main road located between. It is therefore considered that this distance together with 
the orientation of the development would be sufficient to ensure that there would be no loss 
of privacy, overbearing or overshadowing. 

 
The existing three storey block of flats known as units 1-6 Eagle Mews are located 
immediately adjacent to the south eastern side elevation of the proposed development. The 
existing block of flats has as an elevated frontage, with the Talbot Road frontage being a 
blank retaining wall with steps, which gives the overall building the appearance of a four 
storey building when viewed from Talbot Road, but is three storey when viewed from Eagle 
Mews to the rear. The front of the proposed building is shown to be set back slightly from 
the front elevation of 1-6 Eagle Mews, however the proposed rear of the building is shown 
to project out approximately 6.1m from the main third floor and 3.46m from the projecting 
second floor of 1-6 Eagle Mews. There are windows within both second and third floors rear 
elevation of the existing building. While a 45 degree line drawn out from the central point of 
the ground and second floor windows only cuts the very corner of the proposed 
development. A 45 degree line drawn out from the central point of the third floor window 
would cut the side elevation of the proposed development 2.5m back from the corner. To 
overcome this potential impact the applicants have amended the scheme by setting in the 
side elevation of the second and third floors, showing that there would be no breach of 45 
degree line to this existing window. 
 
The closest adjacent dwellings to the main rear projection of the proposed building would 
be units 7 and 8 Eagle Mews. This block of residential units backs onto the side boundary 
of the application site and the existing and proposed car parking area and flanks onto the 
turning head of Eagle Mews. These properties are located approximately 4.1m from their 
rear boundary and 4.6m from the rear corner of the proposed building. This is slightly further 
away than the position of the rear corner of the existing Eagle House, which is shown to be 
approximately 4.2m from the rear elevation of the existing flats. The existing Eagle House 
building is two storey in height with a gables roof that slopes away from the rear elevation 
and back towards the building. The design of the proposed development has been amended 
in this location so that the second floor is set in from the ground and first floor by 1.45m and 
the third floor is set in by 3.95m. These amendments would mean that the proposed 
development at second floor would be located 5.1m from the rear corner of the existing flats 
and at third floor would be located 6.85m from the corner of 7-8 Eagle Mews.  Eagle Mews 
is shown to have a height of 5.67m to eaves and 7.69m to the ridge, while the proposed 
development is proposed to have a height of 6.59m at second floor and 9.81m at third floor. 
It is therefore considered that the proposed amendments when considered together with 
the impact of the existing Eagle House, the siting, design, and massing of the proposed 
structure would not have a significant adverse impact upon the residential amenity of the 
occupiers of units 7-8 Eagle Mews, over and above that of the existing development. 
 
While all construction works are likely to result in a level of noise and disturbance to adjacent 
properties, these impacts can be managed to an acceptable level through the imposition of 
conditions to control the provision of a Construction Environmental Management Plan; 
hours of working; dust suppression measures and the provision of a Piling Method Strategy. 
As such, it is considered that the proposed development would have no significant adverse 
impact upon the residential amenity of the occupiers of the adjacent dwellings. 

Tudalen21



Parking and Access Requirements and Impact on Highway Safety 
 
The submitted plans show the provision of 19 car parking spaces, 3 of which would be 
disabled parking spaces. The development also includes secure bicycle parking within the 
ground floor of the building. The application site is located in a sustainable location opposite 
the Port Talbot Parkway Train Station and adjacent to the transport interchange area, close 
to local amenities.  
 
The Head of Engineering and Transport (Highways) has raised no objection to the proposed 
development subject to the imposition of conditions. These conditions would control the 
provision of the parking facilities on the site and the formation of a section of pedestrian 
footpath along Oakwood Lane where currently the former Public Convenience building is 
located. A 600mm stone wall (using reclaimed stone from the existing building) would be 
constructed along the boundary of the site and the back edge of the pavement to ensure 
that vehicles entering or leaving the site will use the vehicle access point and not the new 
section of pavement. 
 
It is therefore considered that the proposed development would improve pedestrian safety 
along Oakwood Lane and would provide sufficient car parking provision for the proposed 
mixed use development given the sustainable location of the proposal and would have no 
adverse impact upon either pedestrian or highway safety within the existing road network. 
 
Biodiversity / Ecology 

 

The application was supported by the submission of the appropriate surveys, mitigation and 
enhancement scheme. The Biodiversity Officer was initially concerned about the absence 
of the proposed bat and bird features from the proposed plans. This was subsequently 
amended and will be secured by the imposition of a suitably worded condition. This will 
provide acceptable biodiversity enhancement, over and above the small areas of 
landscaping proposed.  
 
Flood risk / Drainage 

 

The application site is located within the current Tan15: Development and Flood Risk: 
Development Flood Maps as flood zone C1. They note that it would be for the Local 
Planning Authority to determine whether the development at this location is justified. 
Residential development is classed as a sensitive use and as such the Justification for 
development within TAN15 is set down within the refined tests. 
 

1) Should be located only in an area of flood risk which is developed and served by 
significant infrastructure, including flood defences (Zone C1 of the DAM) AND 

 
2) Its location is necessary to assist a local authority regeneration initiative or strategy 1, 
or contribute to key employment objectives, necessary to sustain an existing settlement 
or region and; 

 

3) The site meets the definition of previously developed land (i.e. it is not a Greenfield 
site) and concurs with the aims of Planning Policy Wales (i.e. the presumption in favour 
of sustainable development). AND 

 

Tudalen22



4) A Flood Consequence Assessment has been produced to demonstrate that the 
potential consequences of a flood event up to the extreme flood event (1 in 1000 chance 
of occurring in any year) have been considered and meet the criteria below in order to be 
considered acceptable. 

 
As stated above the application site is located within the C1 flood zone. The development 
is located on the edge of the Port Talbot Town Centre where significant regeneration 
initiatives have already brought about the construction of the New Port Talbot Parkway 
Station, the development of the Port Talbot Transport Hub, the redevelopment of the former 
Police Station site and the redevelopment and refurbishment of the former Plaza Cinema 
site. This site is surrounded by these regeneration initiatives and would be the next step in 
the regeneration of this area and would meet the definitions of brownfield land. 
 
This leaves the last of the tests, which is the submission of a Flood Consequence 
Assessment (FCA) to demonstrate the potential consequences of a flood event. The 
applicants submitted a FCA in support of their application. NRW reviewed the  document 
and initially stated that the FCA recommended the finished floor levels of the replacement 
building be set at 7.8mAOD thereby ensuring that the interior of the building remains flood 
free in the 1% plus climate change event. The remainder of the application site would still 
be at risk of flooding with a maximum depth of 0.63m, and therefore the development does 
not fully comply with the requirement of Table A1.14 of the TAN. In the 0.1% event the 
indicative guidance for acceptable flooding is not met with a maximum depth of 1m and 
velocity of 0.85m/s, meaning the site as a whole remains in the ‘Danger for Most/ Danger 
for All’ hazard categories. 
 
In light of this advice the applicant submitted a further FCA statement. In response NRW 
have stated that they note that it is proposed to raise the parking area levels to a minimum 
of 7.79mAOD to comply with Section 11 of TAN15, however the impacts of this upon third 
parties had not been assessed. The applicant’s consultants JBA submitted further 
information by way of a letter addressing the issue of the impacts upon third parties. NRW 
confirmed that this could be considered a reasonable approach to addressing and 
assessing the impact of displacing flood waters elsewhere given the flood depths and 
volumetric area, but stated that they could not definitively confirm this. They continued on 
to state that in the absence of a full hydraulic assessment demonstrating the proposed 
development at Eagle House will not impact upon the flood risk to others we would leave 
the decision to the Authority. 
 
A subsequent meeting with the applicants, NRW and the Authority clarified that due to the 
very small quantity of displacement water involved a full hydraulic model assessment would 
not be practical. It is therefore considered that the potential scale of any result impacts 
associated with the very slight increase in ground level of the existing car parking area could 
be adequately managed within the application site and that potential impacts upon third 
parties and future occupiers associated with flooding could be adequately managed in 
accordance with TAN 15. As such, it is considered that the proposed development would 
have no adverse impact upon the flood risk within the immediate surrounding area. 
 
For clarity at the moment the car park has a varied ground level. At its highest it is 7.79m 
AOD (this is at the boundary with 7/8 Eagle Mews), however the rest of the car park is 
slightly lower dropping down to the lowest height of 7.42mAOD (at the boundary of the site 
with Oakwood Lane near the vehicle entrance). This would be a difference of around 37cm 
or 0.37m at its larges variation.  Most of the site is around 7.6mAOD, so the increase would 

Tudalen23



only be around 19cm. The proposed finished floor level of the building is 7.8mAOD which 
would be comparative to that of the proposed car park level.  
 
 
Contaminated Land 
 

The Contaminated Land Officer has identified that there is potential historic ground 
contamination within the site and has therefore recommended the imposition of the standard 
conditions to require the submission of a desk-top assessment, and if demonstrated 
necessary the provision of a Remediation Strategy and subsequent Verification Report. He 
has also recommended the imposition of a condition that would control the treatment of any 
unexpected contamination which may come to light if the development were to be granted 
permission. 
 
NRW have similarly reviewed the application and have stated that they note that there is no 
surface waters on the site, but that the site sat on a Secondary Aquifer and that previously 
the site was a garage, rail sidings and a sub-station. They have stated that they do not 
consider that the suggested contaminants within the proposed site investigation is broad 
enough and that is should include ground water sampling, alongside soil samples. As such 
they have also suggested conditions for the imposition on any decision. 
 
It is therefore considered that subject to the imposition of such conditions the proposed 
development would have no adverse impact upon ground conditions. 

 
 

Historic Environment and Archaeology. 
 

The Glamorgan Gwent Archaeological Trust were consulted on the proposed development 
and have stated that they have consulted the regional Historic Environmental Record (HER) 
and note that Eagle House is a 19th century former Inn/hotel of stone construction with 
white stone features including quoins and windows. The structure is included in the Neath 
Port Talbot List of Buildings of Local Importance and Designated Canal Structures (Neath 
Port Talbot Council). It is also depicted on historic Ordnance Survey mapping. 
 
The current application is for demolition and whilst the structure has been altered, they 
believe it remains of local historical significance. Therefore in order to preserve this structure 
by record they strongly recommend that a Level 2 survey (Historic England 2016, 
Understanding Historic Buildings: A Guide to Good Recording Practice) is made prior to 
work commencing. To ensure that work is carried out in a suitable manner, they  suggest 
that a condition be imposed as set out below: 

 

“No works to which this consent relates shall commence until an appropriate programme of 
historic building recording and analysis has been secured and implemented in accordance 
with a written scheme of investigation which has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the local planning authority. 

 
Reason: 
As the building is of architectural and cultural significance the specified records are 
required to mitigate impact.” 
 

Tudalen24



While the application building is not a listed building, the former Plaza Cinema Building is 
located on the opposite side of 1-6 Eagle Mews and is a Grade II listed building. This 
building has recently undergone significant refurbishment works which have included the 
demolition of the rear section of the building and construction of a new modern rear 
extension. The rear extension has a flat roof design so is lower than the original building. 
However this reduction helps to emphasis the striking Art Deco tiled front elevation, 
complete with curved glazing and curved front canopy area. While the proposed 
development would be of a modern design, its curved corner feature and the choice of 
materials would not be out of keeping with the listed building and would have no adverse 
impact upon its historic features. It is therefore considered that the proposed development 
would have no unacceptable impact upon the archaeological and historic environment. 

 
 

Air Quality. 
 

The application site is located within an Air Quality Management Area (AQMA). The 
Council’s Environmental Health Officers have raised no objection to the proposed 
development, and as such the proposed development subject to suitable Construction 
Environmental Management would have no adverse impact upon air quality within the 
immediate and wider area. 

 
 

Section 106 Planning Obligations 
 

Local Development Plan Policy SP 4 (Infrastructure) states that “Developments will be 
expected to make efficient use of existing infrastructure and where required make adequate 
provision for new infrastructure, ensuring that there are no detrimental effects on the area 
and community. Where necessary, Planning Obligations will be sought to ensure that the 
effects of developments are fully addressed in order to make the development acceptable”. 
 
Policy I1 (Infrastructure Requirements) then states that “In addition to infrastructure 
improvements necessary to make a development acceptable in health, safety and amenity 
terms, additional works or funding may be required to ensure that, where appropriate, the 
impact of new development is mitigated. These requirements will include consideration of 
and appropriate provision for: Affordable housing; Open space and recreation facilities; 
Welsh language infrastructure (in language Sensitive Areas); Community facilities including 
community hubs; Biodiversity, environmental and conservation interests; Improving access 
to facilities and services including the provision of walking and cycling routes; Historic and 
built environment and public realm improvements; Community and public transport; 
Education and training. 
 

The Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 came into force on 6th April 2010 in 
England and Wales. They introduced limitations on the use of planning obligations (Reg. 

122 refers). As of 6th April 2010, a planning obligation may only legally constitute a reason 
for granting planning permission if it is: 
 

(a) necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms; 
(b) directly related to the development; and 
(c) fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development. 

 

Tudalen25



In this case, the proposal relates to a planning application for the development of 5 two bed 
and 13 one bed apartments. 
 
In view of the type and form of development proposed in this location, having regard to local 
circumstances and needs arising from the development, the following planning obligations 
are considered necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms and to 
meet the policy and legislative tests for planning obligations. 
 
Affordable Housing 
 
Policy AH1 of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan states that all new housing 
developments will be required to contribute to affordable housing provision. Within the Port 

Talbot / Neath spatial area, a 25% affordable housing target is sought. 
 
The proposed development is Social Housing Grant Funded and it is understood that it is 
intended that Tai Tarian would purchase the whole development once complete. However 
they are not the named applicant on the application. As such, it is necessary to secure the 
required affordable contribution if the development were to be sold on the open market. The 
applicants have agreed to the provision within a legal agreement of the required affordable 
housing contribution on the private sale of the property, if the development were to be sold 
on the open market. 
 
Public Open Space / Children’s Play Facilities 
 
Policy OS1 states where there is a quantitative deficiency in outdoor sport, children’s play, 
informal space or allotments, provision will be sought, including the requirement for 
maintenance in conjunction with all new residential developments of 3 or more dwellings, 
based on the following standards: 
 

Open Space Standard 
 

Outdoor Sport 1.6 hectares per 1.000 population 
Children’s Play 0.25 hectares per 1,000 population 
Informal Space 0.55 hectares per 1,000 population 
Allotments 0.19 hectares per 1,000 population 
 

 

Tudalen26



 

Having regard to the ‘Open Space Assessment 2013, produced in support of the adopted 
Local Development Plan, it is noted that there are existing ward shortfalls. Accordingly, the 
existing deficiencies would be exacerbated by the increase in population arising from the 
proposed development, and there is a need for the development to contribute towards 
addressing such deficiency. 
 
The following shortfalls and required contributions have been identified as being necessary: 
 

LDP Policy OS 
1Characterisati
on  

On site Requirement 

             (sqm) 

Financial Equivalent 

Outdoor Sport - Pitch 527 £5,680 

Outdoor Sport - Non-pitch 206 £20,600 

Designated Play Space 23 £3,420 

Informal Space 252 £1,260 

Allotments 87 £960 

Total 1,095 £31,920 

 
The applicants have agreed to the payment of the above contribution which would be 
secured via a section 106 agreement which would have to be signed prior to the issuing of 
the decision notice. 

 
 

Other Matters 
 

Responses to matters raised in representations not covered in the report on the main 
issues. 
 
As identified earlier in this report, a number of objections were received in response 
following the publicity exercises. In response to the main issues raised which have not been 
addressed elsewhere in this report, the following comments are made: 
 

 Concerns in relation to the noise and disturbance experience during development 
have been addressed within the above appraisal and would be addressed through 
a condition to secure the implementation of a Construction Environment 
Management Plan. It is also noted that the construction works on the Plaza 
Development have now been completed and as such there would not be a 
cumulative impact associated with this proposed development. 

 

 Issues relation to the potential impact of the proposed development through 
overshadowing and overbearing to the neighbouring properties has been 
addressed above. It is also noted that the Plaza development has resulted in a 
decrease in height of the rear section of the building over that of the original 
structure thereby reducing its potential impacts upon the adjacent properties. 

Tudalen27



 

CONCLUSION 
 

The decision to recommend planning permission has been taken in accordance with 
Section 38 of The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, which requires that, in 
determining a planning application the determination must be in accordance with the 
Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The Development 
Plan comprises Future Wales - the National Plan 2040 and the Neath Port Talbot Local 
Development Plan (2011–2026) adopted January 2016. 
 
It is considered that the proposal represents an appropriate form of development that would 
have no unacceptable impact on the character and appearance of the surrounding area or 
adjacent historic building or upon the residential amenity of the occupiers of the adjacent 
dwellings. It would also have no adverse impact upon the highways safety of the existing 
road network or upon the existing drainage system or the risk of flooding, or upon 
biodiversity. Accordingly, the proposed development is in accordance with Policies SP1, 
SP3, SP7, SP8, SP10, SP12, SP15, SP16, SP18, SP19, SP20, SP21, SC1, AH1, OS1, R3, 
TO4, EN7, EN8, EN9 RE2, TR2, BE1 and BE2 of the 

Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 
 
It is further considered that the decision complies with Future Wales - the National Plan 
2040, specifically Policies 2, 7 and 8 together with  the Council’s well-being objectives and 
the sustainable development principle in accordance with the requirements of the Well-
being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. 

 
 

Recommendation: 
 

To granted planning permission subject to the following conditions and upon the signing of 
a Section 106 Agreement with the following Heads of Terms;  

 The payment of £31,920 towards the provision of off-site leisure facilities within the 
ward of Port Talbot 

 To secure the required affordable housing contribution of 25% should the residential 
units be sold on the open market and the following conditions: 

 

 

Time Limit Conditions 
 

1 The development shall begin no later than five years from the date of this 
decision. 

 
Reason: 
To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990. 

 
List of Approved Plans 

 

2 The development shall be carried out in accordance with the following 
approved plans and documents: 

Tudalen28



 
Proposed Floor Plans - 1487-PL1-05G 
Proposed Elevations - 1487-PL1-06C 
Proposed Site Plan - 1487-PL-04C 
Proposed Floor Plans - 1487-PL1-08B 
Justification Under Policy BE2 - Buildings of Local Importance dated 5 
October 2021 by Kennedy James Griffiths. 
Location Plan - 1487-PL1-01A 
Site Analysis Plan - 1487-PL1-02 
Existing Site Plan/Demolition - 1487-PL1-03 
Context Elevations - 1487-PL1-07A 
Car Park Raising - 1487-PL- 13 
Additional Flood Risk Information by JBA Consulting dated 9 Nov 2021. 
Eagle House Flood Consequence Assessment Version 1 September 2021 by 
JBA Consulting. 
Revised Design and Access Statement - 1487-PL:DAS Nov 1 
Pre-application Consultation Report - 1487-PL1 PAC 
Site Management Plan 1487: PL1-12 
Eagle House - Phase 1 Report 21035/R1 dated April 2021 by Spectrum Geo 
Services. 
Eagle House - Dwr Cymru Welsh Water Plan. 
Noise Impact Assessment by Acoustic Consultants Ltd dated 28/05/21. 
Travel Plan (Draft) 1487:PL:TP by Kennedy Jones Griffiths. 
Bat and Nesting Birds Survey Report - August 2021 by Acer Ecology. 
Construction Environmental Management Plan 1487:PL1:CEMP by Kennedy 
James Griffith. 
Topographic Survey P3404. 

 
Reason: 
In the interests of clarity. 

 
Pre-Commencement Conditions 
 

3 Before beginning any development at the site, you must do the following: - 
a) Notify the Local Planning Authority in writing that you intend to commence 
development by submitting a Formal Notice under Article 24B of the Town 
and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Wales) Order 
2012 (DMPWO) in the form set out in Schedule 5A (a newly inserted 
Schedule) of the DMPWO (or in a form substantially to the like effect); and 

 
b) Display a Site Notice (as required by Section 71ZB of the 1990 Act) in the 
form set out in Schedule 5B (a newly inserted Schedule) of the DMPWO (or 
in a form substantially to the like effect), such Notice to be firmly affixed and 
displayed in a prominent place, be legible and easily visible, and be printed 
on durable material. Such Notice must thereafter be displayed at all times 
when development is being carried out. 

 
Reason: 
To comply with procedural requirements in accordance with Article 24B of the 
Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Wales) 
Order 2012 (DMPWO) and Section 71ZB of the Town and Country Planning 

Tudalen29



Act 1990. 
 

NOTE: Templates of the required Notice and Site Notice are available to 
download at www.npt.gov.uk/planning 

 
4 No works to which this consent relates shall commence until an appropriate 

programme of historic building recording (Level 2) and analysis has been 
secured and implemented in accordance with a written scheme of 
investigation which has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
local planning authority. 
Reason: 
As the building is of architectural and cultural significance the specified 
records are required to mitigate impact and in accordance with policy SP21 
of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 

 
5 No development shall commence on site until an assessment of the nature 

and extent of contamination affecting the application site area has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This 
assessment must be carried out by or under the direction of a suitably 
qualified competent person in accordance with BS10175 (2011) 'Investigation 
of Potentially Contaminated Sites Code of Practice' and shall assess any 
contamination on the site, whether or not it originates on the site. The report 
of the findings shall include: 

 

(i) a desk top study to identify all previous uses at the site and potential 
contaminants associated with those uses and the impacts from those 
contaminants on land and controlled waters. The desk study shall 
establish a 'conceptual site model' (CSM) which identifies and assesses all 
identified potential source, pathway, and receptor linkages; 

(ii) an intrusive investigation to assess the extent, scale and nature of 
contamination which may be present, if identified as required by the desk top 
study; 
(iii) an assessment of the potential risks to: 
- human health, 
- groundwater and surface waters sampling 
- adjoining land, 
- property (existing or proposed) including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, 
woodland and service lines and pipes,- ecological systems, 
- archaeological sites and ancient monuments; and 
- any other receptors identified at (i) 
(iv) an appraisal of remedial options, and justification for the preferred 
remedial option(s). 

 
Reason: 
To ensure that information provided for the assessment of the risks from land 
contamination to the future users of the land, neighbouring land, controlled 
waters, property and ecological systems is sufficient to enable a proper 
assessment, and to ensure compliance with Policies SP16 and EN8 of the 
Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 

 
6 No development shall commence on site until a remediation scheme to bring 

Tudalen30

http://www.npt.gov.uk/planning


the site to a condition suitable for the intended use by removing any 
unacceptable risks to human health, buildings, other property and the natural 
and historic environment shall be prepared and submitted to and approved in 
writing with the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include all works 
to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives, remediation criteria and 
site management procedures. The measures proposed within the 
remediation scheme shall be implemented in accordance with an agreed 
programme of works. 

 
Reason: 
To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land 
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled 
waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development 
can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours 
and other offsite receptors, and to ensure compliance with Policies SP16 and 
EN8 of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 

 
7 Prior to their use in the construction of the development hereby permitted, 

details and/or samples of the materials to be used in the construction of the 
external surfaces of the development shall have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be 
carried out in accordance with the approved details. 

 

Reason: 
In the interest of the visual amenity of the area and to ensure the 
development complies with Policy BE1 of the Neath Port Talbot Local 
Development Plan. 

 
8 Prior to work commencing on site, full details of the refuse/recycling 

proposals for the development shall be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. The submitted details shall include whether 
the service will be provided by a private contractor or Neath Port Talbot 
County Borough Council's Kerbside  Refuse and Recycling Scheme, 
together with details of the proposed collection arrangements including bin 
storage areas, collection arrangements and details of swept path analysis of 
the contractors' vehicle accessing the site. The approved details shall be fully 
implement on site prior to the first beneficial use of the hereby approved 
development. 
 
Reason 
In the interests of highway and pedestrian safety while also ensuring the 
provision of adequate waste collection services and in accordance with policy 
TR2 of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 

 
9 No development shall take place on site, including any demolition, until a 

scheme detailing the construction of a replacement footway on Oakwood 
Lane to replace the existing former public convenience building has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
submitted scheme shall show the footway tie into the existing footway and 
shall include details of the amendment of any existing Traffic Regulation 
Orders within this area. The approved scheme shall be fully implemented on 

Tudalen31



site prior to the first beneficial use of any part of the hereby approved 
commercial and residential development and shall be retained as such and 
available for public use thereafter. 
Reason: 
In the interests of Highway and Pedestrian Safety and in accordance with 
policy TR2 of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 

 
Action Conditions 

 

10 Notwithstanding the details submitted, prior to the first beneficial use of the 
hereby approved development the bathroom window serving flat 16 on the 
third floor and the lounge window closest to units 7 and 8 Eagle Mews in flats 
6 and 12 on the first and second floors shall be fitted with obscured glazing, 
and any part of the window/s that is less than 1.7m above the floor of the 
room in which it is installed shall be non-opening. The windows shall be 
permanently retained as such thereafter. 

 
Reason : 

  In the interest of the amenities of the adjoining properties, and to ensure 
  accordance with Policy BE1 of the adopted Neath Port Talbot Local 
  Development Plan. 
 

11 In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the 
approved development that was not previously identified, work on site shall 
cease immediately and shall be reported in writing to the Local Planning 
Authority. A Desk Study, Site Investigation, Risk Assessment and where 
necessary a Remediation Strategy must be undertaken in accordance with 
the following document:- Land Contamination: A Guide for Developers 
(WLGA, WAG & EAW, July 2006). This document shall be submitted to and 
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. Prior to occupation of the 
development, a verification report which demonstrates the effectiveness of 
the agreed remediation, shall be submitted to and agreed in writing with the 
Local Planning Authority. 

 
Reason: 
To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land 
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled 
waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development 
can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours 
and other off site receptors, and to ensure compliance with Policies SP16 
and EN8 of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 

 
12 Prior to beneficial use of the proposed development commencing, a 

verification report which demonstrates the effectiveness of the agreed 
remediation works carried out in accordance with condition 6 shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 
Reason: 
To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land 
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled 
waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development 

Tudalen32



can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours 
and other offsite receptors and to ensure compliance with Policies SP16 and 
EN8 of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 

 
13 Prior to the start of any piling operations on site, full details of a piling method 

statement shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The submitted details shall demonstrate that there is no 
unacceptable risk to groundwater, as well as details of the predicted noise 
and vibration levels associated with the proposed method of piling. Any piling 
works carried out on site shall be in full accordance with the Approved Piling 
Method Statement. 
 
Reason 

In the interest of groundwaters and the residential amenity of occupiers of the 
adjacent properties and in accordance with policy BE1 of the Neath Port 
Talbot Local Development Plan. 

 
14 Prior to the first beneficial use of the hereby approved development a stone 

wall built from reclaimed stone from the existing building shall be constructed 
along the back edge of the existing and new footway along Oakwood Lane 
with a maximum height of 1m and shall be retained as such thereafter. 

 
Reason: 
In the interest of visual amenity and to ensure compliance with Policy BE1 of 
the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 

 
15 Prior to the first beneficial use of the hereby approved development details of 

both hard and soft landscape works for the car parking area and the front and 
rear landscape/ecology areas shall be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. These details shall include: 

 
- Details of the proposed materials to be used in the construction of the car 
parking surface. 

 
- Soft landscape works shall include: planting plans; written specifications 
(including cultivation and other operations associated with plant and grass 
establishment); schedules of plants noting species, plant supply sizes and 
proposed numbers/densities where appropriate; an implementation 
programme (including phasing of work where relevant). 

 
The landscaping works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details during the first planting season immediately following completion and 
occupation of the development. The completed scheme shall thereafter be 
retained in accordance with an approved scheme and the Landscape 
Management Plan. 

 
Reason: 
In the interests of maintaining a suitable scheme of landscaping to protect the 
visual amenity of the area, to maintain the special qualities of the landscape 
and habitats through the protection, creation and enhancement of links 
between sites and their protection for amenity, landscape and biodiversity 

Tudalen33



value, and to ensure the development complies with Policies SP15 and BE1 
of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 

 
16 Prior to the first occupation of any dwelling hereby approved, a Landscape 

Management Plan, including management responsibilities and maintenance, 
for all landscaped areas other than privately owned domestic gardens, shall 
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The landscape management plan shall be implemented and 
adhered to in accordance with the approved details thereafter. 

 
Reason: 
In the interest of visual amenity, and to ensure the long term management 
and maintenance of all landscaped areas that lie outside of the curtilage of 
individual properties, and to ensure the development complies with Policies 
SP15 and BE1 of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 

 
17 Prior to first beneficial use of the commercial element of the development, a 

delivery management plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. The commercial development shall be 
operated in accordance with the approved details thereafter. 
 
Reason. 
In the interests of Highway and Pedestrian Safety and in accordance with 
policy TR2 of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 

 
18 Prior to the start of any construction works (excluding demolition) full details 

of the proposed biodiversity enhancement measures including external or 
integrated bat and bird boxes  shall be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. The approved details shall be fully 
implemented on site and shall be retained as such thereafter. 
 
Reason. 
To ensure that the proposed development provides appropriate biodiversity 
enhancement features in accordance with policy BE1 and EN7.and Part 1 
Section 6 of the Environment (Wales) Act 2016, and Policy contained 
within Planning Policy Wales and TAN 5 Nature Conservation and 
Planning.  

 
Regulatory Conditions 

 

19 The development hereby approved shall be constructed to have a finished 
floor level within the building of 7.8mAOD and the car parking area shall have 
a finished surface area of 7.79m AOD. 

 
Reason 
In the interest of the amenities of the area and to ensure the development 
complies with Policy BE1 of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 

 
20 The use of the ground floor commercial units shall not be carried out outside 

the hours of 08:00 to 22:00 Monday to Saturdays to 10:00 to 16:00 on 
Sundays and bank holidays. 

Tudalen34



 
Reason: 
In the interest of residential amenity and to ensure the development complies 
with Policy BE1 and EN8 of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 

 
 

21 The development hereby approved shall be connected to the mains sewerage 
system prior to the first beneficial use of the first dwelling or commercial unit 
and retained as such thereafter. 
Reason: 
In the interest of satisfactory drainage of the site, and ensure the 
development complies with Policy SP16 and BE1 of the Neath Port Talbot 
Local Development Plan. 

 
 

22 Demolition or construction works shall not take place outside the hours of 
08:00 to 18:00 Mondays to Fridays, 08:00 to 13:30 on Saturdays and not at 
all on Sundays or Bank Holidays. 
 
Reason: 
In the interest of residential amenity and to ensure the development complies 
with Policy BE1 and EN8 of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 

 
23 The development shall not be occupied until facilities for the secure storage of 

bicycles have been provided in accordance with details shown on drawing 
1487-PL-04 Rev c and such facilities shall thereafter be retained as approved 
at all times. 

 
Reason: 
In the interest of highway safety and to ensure the development complies with 
Policy TR2 of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 

 
24 The car parking spaces as shown on drawing 1487-PL-04C shall be provided 

prior to the first beneficial use of the development hereby permitted 
commencing and a minimum of 10% of the parking spaces shall be provided 
with Electric Vehicle Charging facilities, and shall thereafter be used solely for 
the benefit of the occupants of the dwelling units and commercial units of 
which it forms part and their visitors and for no other purpose and shall be 
retained as such thereafter. 
 
Reason:  
In the interest of highway safety and to ensure the development complies with 
Policy TR2 of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 

 
25 The demolition and construction works associated with the proposed 

development shall be in full compliance with the submitted documents 
Construction Environmental Management Plan 1487:PL1:CEMP, The 
Demolition Method Statement 1487 CEMP APP C. The Site Management 
Plan 1487-PL1-12 with the site gates annotated at the wheel washing 
facilities amended to be of a type that open inward only and do not open out 
over the public Highway. 

Tudalen35



 
Reason 
In the interests of highway and pedestrian safety and in accordance with 
policy TR2 of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 

 
26  No infiltration of surface water drainage into the ground is permitted other 

than with the express written consent of the local planning authority, which 
may be given for those parts of the site where it has been demonstrated that 
there is no resultant unacceptable risk to controlled waters. The development 
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 

 
Reason. 
To prevent both new and existing development from contributing to or being 
put at unacceptable risk from or being adversely affected by unacceptable 
levels of water pollution and in accordance with policy BE1 of the Neath Port 
Talbot Local Development Plan. 

 
27 The ground floor of the hereby approved development shall be used for A2 - 

financial and professional services uses and for no other purpose (including 
any permitted change of use to other purpose in class A1- retail of the 
schedule to the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (or in 
any provision equivalent to that class in any statutory instrument revoking and 
re-enacting that order with or without modification). 
 
Reason: 
In order that other changes of use can be assessed in the interests of amenity 
and to accord with Policies SC1 and TR2 of the Neath Port Talbot Local 
Development Plan. 

 

 

Tudalen36



SECTION B – MATTERS FOR INFORMATION 
 
DELEGATED APPLICATIONS  
DETERMINED BETWEEN 11 JULY 2022 AND 1 AUGUST 2022 
 

App No:  P2014/0804 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with Condition 38 
(Highway construction details) of P2012/1116 granted 
on 12/5/14 

Location: GRAIG YR AWEL AND INDUSTRIAL UNIT  LANE 
FROM LON HIR TO GLYNDOLE FARM  GELLINUDD 
PONTARDAWE  SWANSEA  SA8 3DE   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Alltwen 

 

App No:  P2021/0671 

Proposal: Partial discharge of conditions 39 & 40 (relating to the 
monitoring of Cefn Faes Uchaf Farm spring water 
levels and groundwater level data) attached to planning 
permission P2010/0655 

Location: Gilfach Quarry   Gilfach Road  Bryncoch  SA10 8AD     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryncoch NorthBryncoch North 

 

App No:  P2021/1147 

Proposal: First floor side extension, new roof over existing 
footprint of building to include attic rooms, together with 
increased ridge height, rear dormer and 2 no. front roof 
lights and new chimney 

Location: 17 Ormes Road  Skewen  SA10 6SY       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Coedffranc North 

 

App No:  P2021/1224 

Proposal: Proposed workshop and porta cabins 
Location: The Yard   Efail Fach  Pontrhydyfen  SA12 9UB     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Pelenna 

 

Tudalen37

Eitem yr Agenda6



App No:  P2021/1269 

Proposal: Change of use of existing industrial unit (Sui Generis), 
to include sub-division into (B1, B2 and B8 use), 
overcladding of existing building envelope, installation 
of vehicular and pedestrian doors. 

Location: Llewellyns Road  Port Talbot  SA13 1RF       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2022/0008 

Proposal: Proposed flood lights (8 No.) 
Location: Trefelin Boys & Girls Club  Velindre  Port Talbot       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryn And Cwmavon 

 

App No:  P2022/0064 

Proposal: 1x non-illuminated fascia sign plus 1x non-illuminated 
projecting sign to front elevation 

Location: 5 Ropewalk  Neath  SA11 1EW       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath North 

 

App No:  P2022/0074 

Proposal: Installation of a play area for older children (10+) which 
will be 3 pieces of equipment: A Junior swing, a rota 
glide and an Athens lite junior multi unit, along with a 
steel youth shelter a bench and a bin. The play area 
will include tarmac, fencing and gates. 

Location: Blaengwynfi Recreation Park  Park Lane  Blaengwynfi  
Port Talbot  Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Gwynfi & Croeserw 

 

App No:  P2022/0090 

Proposal: Retention and completion of 4.5m high perimeter fence 
to multi use games area 

Location: Ysgol Gymraeg Ystalyfera  Ynysydarren Road  
Ystalyfera  Swansea  Neath Port Talbot   

Tudalen38



Decision: Approved 
Ward: Ystalyfera 

 

App No:  P2022/0167 

Proposal: Details pursuant to the discharge of conditions 9 (noise 
mitigation measures), 11 (PV Panel Detail for the 
Apartment Blocks),  14 (artificial nesting sites for birds 
),  16 ( Details of the Bin Stores and Storage Buildings) 
and 18 (Boundary Treatment Details) of planning 
permission P2021/0226 granted on 31/08/2021 
 
 

Location: Former Afan Lido And Car Park  Aberavon Seafront  
Port Talbot       

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Sandfields East 

 

App No:  P2022/0207 

Proposal: Change of use from barn to one 3 bed holiday 
accommodation unit and associated external 
alterations including new and altered external 
openings, flue, patio area and new septic tank together 
with new surfaced pull in bays to existing access lane 

Location: Tirlan Farm  Lane From C182 To Tirlan Farm  Crynant  
Neath  Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Crynant, Onllwyn & Seven Sisters 

 

App No:  P2022/0243 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in accordance with Condition 3 of 
(Extraction system details) of application P2021/1141 
granted on 25.01.2022. 

Location: 1-2 Commercial Buildings   Talbot Road  Port Talbot  
SA13 1DR     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Port Talbot 

 

App No:  P2022/0275 

Tudalen39



Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with condition 5 
(land contamination) - Llandarcy Academy, Neath - 
Revised Phase I Geo-Environmental Report and 
condition 6 (coal mining) - Llandarcy Academy, Neath - 
Revised Coal Mining Risk Assessment of permission 
P2021/1232 granted on 09.02.2022. 

Location: Llandarcy Academy Of Sport   Access Road To 
Llandarcy Village  Llandarcy  SA10 6JD     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Coedffranc West 

 

App No:  P2022/0284 

Proposal: Detached Dwelling 
Location: Plot 36   Forest Lodge Lane  Cwmavon  Port Talbot  

SA13 2RX   
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryn And Cwmavon 

 

App No:  P2022/0287 

Proposal: Discharge of conditions 66 (management of sub and 
top soils in storage) & condition 68 (details of soils and 
peat resources recovered during operations on site) 
attached to planning permission P2014/0729 

Location: Aberpergwm Colliery  B4242 From Rheola To 
Glynneath  Glynneath  Neath  Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Glynneath Central & East 

 

App No:  P2022/0293 

Proposal: Widening of existing vehicle access 
Location: Pwll Yr Hwyaid Farm   Water Street  Margam  SA13 

2PL     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2022/0305 

Tudalen40



Proposal: Non material amendment of planning permission 
P2021/0226 approved on 31/08/2021 to amend the 
construction management plan submitted alongside the 
construction method statement which is controlled 
under condition 23. This has been amended to alter the 
location of the materials store and construction 
compound on the south eastern parcel. 

Location: Former Afan Lido And Adjacent Car Park  Aberavon 
Seafront  Princess Margaret Way  Port Talbot  SA12 
6QW   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Sandfields East 

 

App No:  P2022/0315 

Proposal: Proposed garage conversion into residential use not in 
compliance with Condition 21 of P2019/0269 in relation 
to the replacement parking scheme. 

Location: 34 Heol Cynfeli  Rhos  Pontardawe  SA8 3FD     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Rhos 

 

App No:  P2022/0318 

Proposal: Single storey rear extension 
Location: 16 Y Gilfach  Llandarcy  SA10 6GA       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Coedffranc West 

 

App No:  P2022/0328 

Proposal: Details pursuant to the discharge of conditions 4 
(potable water supply), 17 (materials) and 22 (street 
lighting) of planning permission P2021/0226 granted on 
31/08/2021 (amended lighting plan) 

Location: Former Afan Lido Site   Aberavon Seafront  Princess 
Margaret Way  Port Talbot  SA12 6QW   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Sandfields East 

 

App No:  P2022/0336 

Tudalen41



Proposal: Change of use from grazing land to provide an outdoor 
seating area including provision of a parking area in 
association with the existing public house (Class A3), 
means of enclosure, alteration to existing vehicular 
access together with a single storey side extension 
(amended access received 17 June 2022) 

Location: 118 Neath Road  Rhos  Pontardawe  SA8 3HB     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Rhos 

 

App No:  P2022/0342 

Proposal: Proposed single storey rear conservatory, the works for 
which include alterations to an existing retaining wall 

Location: 1 Glyn Garfield Close  Penrhiwtyn  Neath  Neath Port 
Talbot  SA11 2JR   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath East 

 

App No:  P2022/0348 

Proposal: Proposed Change of Use of first floor at No.20 London 
Road to D1 (Chiropractic Clinic/consulting rooms)  
 

Location: 19-20   London Road  Neath  SA11 1LE     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath North 

 

App No:  P2022/0361 

Proposal: Proposed two storey side and rear extension 
(Amended Received 25-5-22) 

Location: 32 Neath Road  Crynant  SA10 8SE       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Crynant, Onllwyn & Seven Sisters 

 

App No:  P2022/0362 

Proposal: Internal refurbishment of a public toilet. 
Location: Public Conveniences,   The Mews Courtyard,  Margam 

Country Park,   Water Street,  Margam   
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

Tudalen42



 

App No:  P2022/0386 

Proposal: Revised Details pursuant to the discharge of conditions 
6 (Remediation Scheme) of planning permission 
P2021/0226 granted on 31/08/2021 

Location: Former Afan Lido Site  Aberavon  Neath Port Talbot       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Sandfields East 

 

App No:  P2022/0391 

Proposal: Single storey side extension 
Location: 1 Maes Y Bettws  Cwmavon  SA12 9YN       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryn And Cwmavon 

 

App No:  P2022/0397 

Proposal: Section 73 application to remove Condition 10 
(Structural Integrity Scheme) of planning permission ref 
P2021/1019 for proposed Asphalt Plant  
 

Location: Land At Edwards Works  Llandarcy  SA10 6JY       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Coedffranc West 

 

App No:  P2022/0405 

Proposal: Retrospective planning permission for a temporary 
sales cabin, associated car parking, access and 
landscaping. 

Location: Former Afan Lido Site  Aberavon Seafront  Port Talbot       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Sandfields East 

 

App No:  P2022/0406 

Proposal: First floor side extension, two storey side/rear 
extension, replacement full length window adjacent to 
front door in ground floor front elevation, new extended 
canopy to front elevation replacement kitchen window 
instead of patio doors in ground floor rear elevation. 

Tudalen43



Location: 69 Mariners Point  Sandfields  Port Talbot  SA12 6DN     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Sandfields East 

 

App No:  P2022/0415 

Proposal: Erection of a Use Class A1/A3 Drive Thru outlet, 
together with associated servicing, car parking and 
landscaping, ancillary works and signage. 

Location: Land At Baglan Bay Retail Park   Afan Way  Port 
Talbot  SA12 7BZ     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Aberavon 

 

App No:  P2022/0417 

Proposal: Details pursuant to the discharge of conditions 11 
(electric vehicle charging points), 12 (materials) and 16 
(mobility scooter storage areas) of planning permission 
P2021/0108  granted on 16/09/2021 

Location: Land Off Pant Celydd   Knights Road  Margam  Port 
Talbot  SA13 2DJ   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2022/0422 

Proposal: Proposed single storey rear extensions, the works for 
which include the installation of an internal step change 
to allow for the drop in topography 

Location: 114 Crymlyn Road  Skewen  SA10 6DT       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Coedffranc Central 

 

App No:  P2022/0433 

Proposal: Construction of extension to existing hospital to provide 
development of an Elective Orthopaedic & Spinal 
Surgical Unit with all associated landscaping and 
infrastructure. 

Location: Neath Port Talbot Hospital   Baglan Way  Aberavon  
SA12 7BX     

Decision: Approved 

Tudalen44



Ward: Aberavon 
 

App No:  P2022/0437 

Proposal: Part single/part two storey side/rear extensions and 
front porch. 

Location: 8 Ynyslas Crescent  Glynneath  SA11 5LB       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Glynneath Central & East 

 

App No:  P2022/0442 

Proposal: Single storey side/rear extension. 
Location: 1 Hafod Street  Port Talbot  SA13 1AE       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Port Talbot 

 

App No:  P2022/0447 

Proposal: Conversion of integral garage to bedroom 
Location: 2 Cae Derw  Bryncoch  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  

SA10 7FG   
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryncoch South 

 

App No:  P2022/0452 

Proposal: Import of material for development of Phase 2 - 
pursuant to condition 23 of outline planning permission 
P2018/0491 (all material to be assessed for 
contaminants prior to importation) 

Location: Swansea University Bay Campus   Fabian Way  
Crymlyn Burrows  SA2 8EN     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Coedffranc West 

 

App No:  P2022/0453 

Proposal: Proposed single storey side/rear extension, the works 
for which would include the demolition of an existing 
detached garage 

Location: 132 Delffordd  Rhos  Pontardawe  Swansea  Neath 
Port Talbot   

Tudalen45



Decision: Approved 
Ward: Rhos 

 

App No:  P2022/0455 

Proposal: Works to 1x Alder (identified as T9) and 2x Sessile Oak 
(identified as T10 & T11) protected by Tree 
Preservation Order T282:  
-Reduce length of lower branches by 3m up to a height 
of 5m 

Location: 8 Cloda Avenue  Bryncoch  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  
SA10 7FH   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryncoch South 

 

App No:  P2022/0456 

Proposal: Proposed first floor bedroom/ensuite built above 
existing kitchen at the rear of the property and single 
storey side extension. 

Location: 35 Heol Dyddwr  Tonna  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  
SA11 3PZ   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Resolven & Tonna 

 

App No:  P2022/0457 

Proposal: Change of use of second floor existing residential flat to 
ancillary storage rooms for ground and first floors of 
Taibach Rugby Football Club building 

Location: 2nd Floor Flat  Taibach RFC  23 Commercial Road  
Taibach  Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2022/0467 

Proposal: Proposed single storey rear extension, the works for 
which include the demolition of an existing rear 
conservatory. 

Location: 31 Thomas Street  Pontardawe  SA8 4HD       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Pontardawe 

Tudalen46



 

App No:  P2022/0472 

Proposal: Discharge of Condition 2 of Planning Permission 
P2021/0965 in relation to monitoring for verification of 
noise levels. 

Location: Unit 9 Gymnasium   Quay Road  Neath  SA11 1RR     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath North 

 

App No:  P2022/0475 

Proposal: Non material amendment application to change 
Condition 6 (site investigations) wording on the 
decision notice of application P2021/1232, to remove 
reference to intrusive site investigations and the 
completion of any remedial works and/or mitigation 
necessary to address the risks posed by past coal 
mining activity. 

Location: Llandarcy Academy Of Sport   Access Road To 
Llandarcy Village  Llandarcy  SA10 6JD     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Coedffranc West 

 

App No:  P2022/0477 

Proposal: Roof-mounted solar panels. 
Location: Unit 36   Kenfig Industrial Estate Road  Margam  SA13 

2PE     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2022/0480 

Proposal: Details pursuant to the discharge of conditions 3, 
(landscaping), 4, 5 and 6 (land contamination) of 
planning permission P2021/1207  granted on 
13/12/2021 

Location: Pre-existing compound area within the ABP Docklands 
at Margam, Port Talbot           

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

Tudalen47



App No:  P2022/0485 

Proposal: Two storey rear extension 
Location: 18 Tudor Street  Port Talbot  SA13 1YF       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Port Talbot 

 

App No:  P2022/0486 

Proposal: Change of use of dwelling to a mixed use as dwelling 
with holiday let/annexe. 

Location: 38 Sandown Road  Sandfields  SA12 6PS       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Sandfields East 

 

App No:  P2022/0487 

Proposal: Single storey rear extension 
Location: 8 Llys Y Ddraenog  Margam  Port Talbot  Neath Port 

Talbot  SA13 2TQ   
Decision: Issue Certificate 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2022/0488 

Proposal: Proposed subdivision of existing dwelling to create two 
self-contained residential units 

Location: 182 New Road  Skewen  SA10 6HD       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Coedffranc Central 

 

App No:  P2022/0499 

Proposal: Certificate of Lawful Development (proposed): Use of 
outbuilding as a dog grooming salon (no external 
alterations) for 4 days per week, Monday to Saturday 
between the hours of 8:45am until 6pm for a maximum 
of 15 dogs per week 

Location: 265 Swansea Road  Trebanos  Pontardawe  SA8 4BY     
Decision: Issue Certificate 
Ward: Trebanos 

 

Tudalen48



App No:  P2022/0512 

Proposal: Single storey side/rear extension, disabled ramp 
access within front curtilage and new retaining 
walls/steps to rear garden. 

Location: 39 Pine Grove  Cimla  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  SA11 
3RH   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Cimla & Pelenna 

 

App No:  P2022/0514 

Proposal: Single storey rear extension 
Location: 23 Hafod Street  Port Talbot  SA13 1AE       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Port Talbot 

 

App No:  P2022/0519 

Proposal: Single storey rear extension 
Location: 8 Kenilworth Court  Baglan  SA12 8NN       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Baglan 

 

App No:  P2022/0542 

Proposal: Single storey side extension -Lawful Development 
Certificate Proposed. 

Location: 128 Abbottsmoor  Aberavon  SA12 6DT       
Decision: Issue Certificate 
Ward: Aberavon 

 

App No:  P2022/0558 

Proposal: Construction of single storey shower room extension to 
side of property - Certificate of lawful development 
(Proposed) 

Location: 106 Glannant Way  Cimla  SA11 3YN       
Decision: Issue Certificate 
Ward: Cimla & Pelenna 

 

App No:  P2022/0567 

Tudalen49



Proposal: Consultation Request from Planning and Environment 
Decisions Wales (PEDW) in relation to a screening 
direction request under the Town and Country Planning 
(Environmental Impact Assessment)(Wales) 
Regulations 2017 for the construction of solar arrays 
and battery storage project generating 50MW on a site 
area of approximately 33ha. of a wider 99.5ha site, with 
associated works including transforms, sub-station and 
inverters, battery energy storage, access tracks, 
storage containers, fencing , CCTV and underground 
33kV cable connection to grid. 

Location: Agricultural Land  To The South Of  Moel Ton-mawr 
And West Of  Mnyndd Margam     

Decision: EIA Development 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2022/0611 

Proposal: Non-material amendment to alter the wording of 
condition 3 of P2022/0226 to allow demolition of the 
existing office structure prior to the submission of an 
assessment of the nature and extent of contamination 
affecting the application site area 

Location: Unit 1   Ynysygerwn Avenue  Aberdulais  SA10 8HH     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Aberdulais 

 

App No:  P2022/0617 

Proposal: Single storey rear extension - Lawful Development 
Certificate (Proposed) 

Location: 46 The Meadows  Cimla  SA11 3XF       
Decision: Issue Certificate 
Ward: Cimla & Pelenna 

 

App No:  P2022/0618 

Proposal: Proposed (LDC) single storey rear extension 
Location: 14 Alltacham Drive  Pontardawe  Swansea  Neath Port 

Talbot  SA8 4JR   
Decision: Issue Certificate 
Ward: Pontardawe 

 

Tudalen50


	Agenda
	3 Cofnodion y cyfarfod blaenorol
	Minutes
	Minutes Public Pack, 19/07/2022 Planning Committee
	Minutes


	5 Cais Rhif P2021/0856 - Eagle House
	6 Penderfyniadau Dirprwyedig - 11 Gorffennaf 2022 ac 1 Awst 2022

